

# **Corporate Business Plan** 2025 – 2029



### **Contents**

Forward	
Planning Framework	
Forecast Statement of Funding	
Capital Program	
Service Delivery	13
Economic Objective	10
Social Objective	18
Environment Objective	2
Civic Leadership Objective	23
Measuring Success	25
Services and Facilities	20

Review adopted at Ordinary Meeting of Council held 27 June 2018
Review adopted at Ordinary Meeting of Council held 24 July 2019
Review adopted at Ordinary Meeting of Council held 28 July 2020
Review adopted at Ordinary Council Meeting held 27 July 2022
Review adopted at Ordinary Council Meeting held 24 May 2023
Review adopted at Ordinary Council Meeting held 26 June 2024
Review presented to Ordinary Council Meeting held 18 June 2025

### **Our Vision:**

"A leading regional economic driver and a socially interactive and inclusive community"



Our Mission: Provide leadership, direction and opportunities for the community.

Key Principles: In achieving the Vision and Mission, we will set achievable goals and work with the community to maintain a reputation of openness, honesty and accountability. In doing so, we will:

- respect the points of view of individuals and groups;
- build on existing community involvement;
- encourage community leadership;
- promote self-reliance and initiative;
- recognise and celebrate achievement;
- support the principles of social justice; and
- acknowledge the value of staff and volunteers.

### **Foreward**

The Strategic Community Plan outlines community long term (10+ years) vision, values, aspirations and priorities, with reference to other Shire plans, information and resourcing capabilities.

This plan, the Corporate Business Plan, provides the internal business planning tool that translates Council priorities into operations within the resources available. It details the services, operations, projects, and the associated cost, the Shire intends to deliver over the next four years.

Leigh Ballard Shire President

18 June 2025

Dale Stewart Chief Executive Officer

The Shire of Narrogin acknowledges the Noongar people as traditional custodians of this land and their continuing connection to land and community. We pay our respect to them, to their culture and to their Elders past and present.

### **Planning Framework**

This Corporate Business Plan 2025-2029, together with the Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, is the Shire of Narrogin's Plan for the Future and has been prepared to achieve compliance with *the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996*.

Under Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 Regulation 19DA (3),

"A Corporate Business Plan for a district is to:

- a) set out, consistently with any relevant priorities in the Strategic Community Plan, a local government's priorities for dealing with the objectives and aspirations of the community in the district; and
- b) govern a local government's internal business planning by expressing a local government's priorities by reference to operations that are within the capacity of the local government's resources; and
- c) develop and integrate matters relating to resources, including asset management, workforce planning and long-term financial planning."

In the preparation of the annual budget the local government is to have regard to the contents of the Plan for the Future as per Section 6.2(2) of the *Local Government Act 1995*.

Development of the Plan has also been influenced by the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries Framework and Guidelines for Integrated Planning and Reporting.

#### **Strategic Community Plan**

The Narrogin community had a strong involvement and voice in the development of the Strategic Community Plan. Commencing in January 2017, the community were invited to share their visions and aspirations for the future of Narrogin, and the Plan has subsequently been reviewed and updated to reflect the community aspirations.

The community shared what they considered most special about the district and their aspirations for the future. The sense of community and a country town feel was highly regarded along as was the multicultural community and the history of the district. It was evident the community values their natural environment and the many native reserves. High quality regional sporting and recreation facilities, along with medical and education services available in Narrogin were also important.

The community strongly identified their desire for further economic development, supporting current local industry whilst pursing opportunities for economic diversity and growth.

This information provided a valuable insight into the key issues and aspirations, as perceived by the local community. Importantly for the Council, these views have helped establish clear priorities and shaped the visions, values, objectives and strategies contained within the Strategic Community Plan 2017 - 2027.

## **Planning Framework (continued)**

#### **Corporate Business Plan**

Achieving the community's vision and the Shire's strategic objectives requires the development of actions to address each strategy contained within the Strategic Community Plan. Careful operational planning and prioritisation is required to achieve the outcomes due to the constraints of limited resources. This planning process is formalised by the development of this Corporate Business Plan. The Corporate Business Plan then, in turn, converts the Strategic Community Plan into action via the adoption of an Annual Budget.

The Corporate Business Plan must be reviewed annually to assess the progress of projects and realign the Plan's actions and priorities based on current information and available funding.

Actions requiring funding will only be undertaken once approved within the statutory budget and subject to funding availability. Along with achieving the community aspirations and objectives the Corporate Business Plan draws on information contained within the following strategic documents.

#### **Asset Management Plans**

The Shire has developed Asset Management Plans for major asset classes in accordance with the Asset Management Policy. The Asset Management Plans form a component of an overall Asset Management Strategy which addresses the Shire's current asset management processes and sets out the steps required to continuously improve the management of Shire controlled assets.

Capital renewal estimates contained within the Asset Management Plans have been considered to the extent the financial and workforce resources are available to enable the renewals to occur.

#### **Workforce Plan**

The Workforce Plan provides the workforce management and resource strategies necessary to deliver the objectives, outcomes and strategies of the Shire's Strategic Community Plan.

Workforce issues have been considered during the development of this Corporate Business Plan and the financial impacts of the Workforce Plan captured within the Long Term Financial Plan. A combination of workforce and financial constraints has influenced the prioritisation of actions within this Plan.

#### **Long Term Financial Plan**

The Shire of Narrogin is planning for a positive and sustainable future. The Shire seeks to maintain, and where possible, improve service levels into the future while maintaining a healthy financial position.

During the development of this Corporate Business Plan, the Long Term Financial Plan was updated to confirm the financial capability to undertake the planned actions and ensure integration with this Plan. The results of this update are reflected within the Forecast Statement of Funding on the following page.

#### **Review of Plan**

In accordance with statutory requirements, the Corporate Business Plan is reviewed and updated annually. The review of this Plan occurred following a major review of the Strategic Community Plan in 2017.

## **Forecast Statement of Funding**

The following Statement is extracted from the Long Term Financial Plan and draft budget 2025/26 to provide an indication of the activities proposed in the Corporate Business Plan. This forecast is underpinned by a number of assumptions that provide a reasonable estimate of activity and should not be construed as final or relied upon for investment activities.

#### **RATE SETTING STATEMENT**

	2025/26 Estimated	2026/27 Estimated	2027/28 Estimated	2028/29 Estimated
Net current assets at start of financial year - Surplus/(Deficit)	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
REVENUE				
Governance	\$3,300	\$3,300	\$3,300	\$3,300
General purpose funding	\$2,382,051	\$2,535,578	\$2,742,428	\$3,313,985
Law, order, public safety	\$226,253	\$226,321	\$226,389	\$226,457
Health	\$55,301	\$56,114	\$56,939	\$57,776
Education and welfare	\$2,084,787	\$2,087,497	\$2,115,211	\$2,223,426
Housing	\$23,835	\$24,279	\$24,730	\$25,190
Community amenities	\$1,328,560	\$1,358,760	\$1,385,831	\$1,398,303
Recreation and culture	\$771,521	\$779,622	\$787,808	\$796,080
Transport	\$891,289	\$900,648	\$910,105	\$919,661
Economic services	\$678,864	\$683,141	\$687,445	\$691,776
Other property and services	\$178,258	\$267,564	\$269,222	\$361,508
	\$8,624,020	\$8,922,823	\$9,209,407	\$10,017,461
EXPENSES				
Governance	-\$384,883	-\$388,116	-\$391,376	-\$394,664
General purpose funding	-\$767,683	-\$778,757	-\$779,848	-\$780,939
Law, order, public safety	-\$884,439	-\$900,807	-\$907,293	-\$913,825
Health	-\$329,567	-\$329,962	-\$330,358	-\$330,755
Education and welfare	-\$2,090,674	-\$2,114,836	-\$2,196,557	-\$2,209,759
Housing	-\$103,751	-\$103,200	-\$102,629	-\$102,038
Community amenities	-\$1,643,043	-\$1,653,613	-\$1,689,251	-\$1,680,122
Recreation and culture	-\$5,222,990	-\$5,432,957	-\$5,802,618	-\$5,963,493
Transport	-\$3,899,240	-\$4,064,666	-\$4,023,982	-\$4,192,307
Economic services	-\$1,353,423	-\$1,365,577	-\$1,372,588	-\$1,379,787
Other property and services	-\$30,082	-\$89,943	-\$91,760	-\$93,613
	-\$16,709,774	-\$17,222,434	-\$17,688,258	-\$18,041,304
	-\$8,085,755	-\$8,299,611	-\$8,478,851	-\$8,023,843

Non-Cash Expenditure and Revenue Excluded from Budget (Note 24(a))				
Profit on Asset Disposals	-\$15,000	-\$42,697	-\$43,061	-\$41,656
Movement in liabilities associated with				
restricted cash	\$15,000	\$10,000	\$12,500	\$10,000
Movement in employee benefit				
provisions (non-current)	-\$10,590	-\$17,022	-\$8,539	-\$5,149
Loss on disposal of assets	\$30,000	\$32,400	\$32,400	\$32,400
Depreciation on Assets	\$5,247,588	\$4,174,660	\$4,308,694	\$4,339,419
	\$5,266,998	\$4,157,341	\$4,301,994	\$4,335,014
Investing Activities -Capital Expenditure and Revenue				
Non-operating grants, subsidies and				
contributions	\$20,644,567	\$3,254,443	\$9,637,223	\$986,225
Purchase Land and Buildings	-\$26,570,834	-\$2,650,000	-\$500,000	-\$800,000
Purchase Plant and Equipment	-\$2,359,600	-\$752,500	-\$781,500	-\$542,500
Purchase Furniture and Equipment	-\$265,400	-\$15,000	-\$15,000	\$0
Purchase Infrastructure Assets - Roads	-\$2,695,959	-\$1,581,943	-\$1,449,723	-\$1,763,725
Purchase Infrastructure Assets - Other	-\$2,918,016	-\$411,700	-\$9,372,420	-\$342,320
Proceeds from Disposal of Assets	\$437,000	\$372,000	\$409,500	\$354,000
Amount Attributable to investing				
activities	-\$13,728,242	-\$1,784,700	-\$2,071,920	-\$2,108,320
Financing Activities				
Repayment of Debentures	-\$279,183	-\$316,789	-\$334,215	-\$331,419
Proceeds from New Debentures	\$10,533,333	\$0	\$0	\$0
Payments for principal portion of lease				
liabilities	-\$18,000	\$0	\$0	\$0
Self-Supporting Loan Principal Income	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Transfers to Reserves (Restricted				
Assets)	-\$675,543	-\$831,667	-\$698,052	-\$1,374,577
Transfers from Reserves (Restricted				
Assets)	\$685,500	\$522,500	\$466,000	\$415,500
Amount Attributable to financing				
activities	\$10,246,107	-\$625,956	-\$566,267	-\$1,290,496
Surplus/(Deficiency) Before Rates	-\$6,300,891	-\$6,552,926	-\$6,815,044	-\$7,087,645
Add Rates Raised	\$6,300,891	\$6,552,927	\$6,815,044	\$7,087,645
Net current Assets at 30 June c/fwd -	•	•	•	•
surplus (deficit)	0	0	0	0
Rates Increase:	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%

# **Capital Program**

Capital expenditure activities are summarised below along with an indication of the forecast capital expenditure extracted from the Long-Term Financial Plan.

Key projects within the Plan are:

	Proposed Estimates					
Description	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29		
	\$	\$	\$	\$		
05 LAW, ORDER & PUBLIC SAFETY						
Construction of SES & BFB Joint Facilities	4,473,000	0	0	0		
SES Building Project	54,724	0	0	0		
Additional Public CCTV Cameras	100,000	0	0	0		
Acquisition of Incident Control Vehicle	881,900	0	0	0		
Acquisition of General Rescue Utility Vehicle	110,200	0	0	0		
Drone (Ranger)	5,000	0	0	0		
Utility (CESM)	55,000	0	0	55,000		
Utility (Ranger)	30,000	0	0	35,000		
Utility (Senior Ranger)	45,000	0	0	45,000		
Dog Park (Gnarojin Park)	30,000	0	0	0		
Dog Pound Improvements	12,000	0	0	0		
Speed Signs (x2)	20,000	0	0	0		
Future years estimated (other)		0	0	0		
08 EDUCATION & WELFARE						
Replacement CATS Vehicle (P14)	35,000	0	0	35,000		
Replacement Homecare Minibus (P11)	90,000	0	0	90,000		
Future years estimated (other)		0	0	0		
09 HOUSING						
Residential Land Acquisition	200,000	0	0	0		
Housing Project	12,500,000	0	0	0		
Future years estimated (other)		0	0	0		
10 COMMUNITY AMENITIES						
Narrogin Cemetery Additional Toilets	90,000	0	0	0		
Narrogin Cemetery Stormwater Drain Beautification	18,000	0	0	0		
Recycling Shed (Tip Shop)	50,000	0	0	0		
Liquid Waste Ponds	35,000	0	0	0		
Future years estimated (other)	0	0	0	0		
11 RECREATION & CULTURE						
NRLC - Additional CCTV	15,000	0	0	0		
NRLC - Foyer A/C Units	23,000	0	0	0		
NRLC - 24/7 Gym Access	25,000	0	0	0		
NRLC - Replacement Changing Room Bench Seats	13,900	0	0	0		
NRLC - Energy Efficiency (Solar) Project	1,070,761	0	0	0		
NRLC - Upgrade Project (Swimming pool roof purlins)	2,805,000	0	0	0		

Narrogin Speedway Lighting Upgrade	200,000	0	0	0
Ride on Mower (Parks)	10,000	0	0	0
Utility (Turf Curator Parks)	35,000	0	0	35,000
Alby Park - Flagpoles (x3)	10,000	0	0	0
Thomas Hogg Oval - Light Pole Structure Upgrade	10,000	0	0	0
Alby Park - Soundshell	75,000	0	0	0
Hawks Football Pavilion	4,000,000	0	0	0
Gnarojin Park - lighting upgrade	12,000	0	0	0
Sewerage Realignment - Admin Building to Library	147,245	0	0	0
Library - Interactive Panel	6,000	0	0	0
Library - Mobile Shelving	12,500	0	0	0
Narrogin to Williams Rail Trail	400,000	0	0	0
Museum (repairs to wall)	110,000	0	0	0
Town Hall Improvements - Rigging, Lights, Power	81,110	0	0	0
Town Hall Improvements - Reverse Cycle A/C for Mayors Palour	N/A	0	0	0
Town Hall Improvements - Main Switchboard Upgrade	250,000	0	0	0
Town Hall Improvements - Rigging Upgrade	150,000	0	0	0
39, 41-43, & 45 Federal Street - Shire Owned Buildings Façade Refurbishment	30,000	0	0	0
John Higgins Centre - Kitchen Redesign	7,000	0	0	0
Public Art Strategy Implementation	50,000	25,000	25,000	25,000
UGHSA Ablutions and Pitch Resurfacing	0	835,000	0	0
Gymnastics Club relocation	0	1,500,000	0	0
Gnarojin Park re-design and landscape	0	0	8,000,000	0
RSL Refurbishment	0	0	0	300,000
Future years estimated (other)	0	300,000	550,000	500,000
12 CONSTRUCTION MAINTERNANCE & TRANSPORT				
RRG Projects				
Clayton Road Rehab SLK 0.0 to 6.3	740,750	0	0	0
Narrogin Harrismith Rehab SLK 28.4 to 30.2	400,000	0	0	0
Future years estimated		532,500	532,500	532,500
Muni-funded Road Projects				
Narrogin Valley Construction SLK 6.3 to 8.3	358,367	0	0	0
Argus Street widening	27,605	0	0	0
Future years estimated		500,000	500,000	400,000
Muni-funded Drainage Projects				
Stormwater Diversion to Railway Dam	10,000	0	0	0
Future years estimated		50,000	70,000	50,000
R2R Projects				
Wagin Wickepin Rd Reseal 0.0 to 2.5	91,350	0	0	0
Narrogin Harrismith Rd Reseal 4.3 to 5.8	105,948	0	0	0

Congelin Rd Reseal 4.3 to 5.8	63,000	0	0	0
Dowsett St Reseal 0.0 to 0.09	3,129	0	0	0
Halo St Reseal 0.0 to 0.1	3,960	0	0	0
Harbour St Reseal 0.0 to 0.05	3,927	0	0	0
Harris St Reseal 0.0 to 0.16	7,392	0	0	0
Hive St Reseal 0.0 to 0.15	4,015	0	0	0
James St Reseal 0.0 to 0.17	8,415	0	0	0
Lydeker Way Reseal 0.0 to 0.41	16,907	0	0	0
Fairway St Reseal 0.39 to 0.72	16,335	0	0	0
Furnival St Reseal 0.0 to 0.05	7,920	0	0	0
Fortune St Reseal 0.3 to 0.53	17,702	0	0	0
Cooraminning Rd Resheet 2.8 to 12.2	198,873	0	0	0
Contine Rd Resheet 5.15 to 7.75	107,113	0	0	0
Narrakine South Rd Resheet 10.0 to 12.50	52,510	0	0	0
Pioneer Drive slip lane	165,740	0	0	0
Havelock Street Culvert Upgrade	295,000	0	0	0
R2R Projects future years estimated		300,000	318,000	330,000
Plant Purchases		333,333	0.0,000	200,000
Wheel Loader	350,000	0	0	0
Utility (Construction)	35,000	0	0	35,000
Utility (Building Maintenance)	45,000	0	0	45,000
Trailer 6x4 (Works)	2,500	0	0	75,000
Plant replacement future years (Plant Rep.	2,300	0	0	U
Program)		767,500	866,500	407,500
Footpaths				
Footpath Construction Homer St (Grey to	10.000	•	•	•
Butler)	19,000	0	0	0
Footpath Construction Falcon St (Glyde to Johnston)	27,000	0	0	0
Footpath Construction Narrakine Rd (Clayton	25.000	0	0	0
to Elliot)	35,000	0	0	0
Footpath Construction Grey St ( Hansard to	17,010	0	0	0
Homer)		0	0	0
LED Lighting Upgrade to Footbridge	20,000	54.700	57,400	07.220
Future years estimated		51,700	57,420	67,320
Bridges	007.000			
Tarwonga Bridge (4551)	687,000			
Future years estimated	1	0	0	0
13 ECONOMIC SERVICES	0.5.000			
Narrogin Railway Precinct Pathway	65,000	0	0	0
45 Federal Street renovations	20,000	0	0	0
39-45 Federal Street renovations- repaint exterior	10,000	0	0	0
Façade Refurbishments (Shire owned Buildings)	30,000	0	0	0
Goods Shed - Roof and Wall Restoration	50,000	0	0	0
Caravan Park Accomodation Units	1,830,000	0	0	0
	, ,			

RV Dump Point (Railway Dam)	8,000	0	0	0
Ride on Mower (Caravan Park)	10,000	0	0	0
Future years estimated		75,000	75,000	75,000
14 OTHER PROPERTY & SERVICES				
Re-Roof of Shire Admin Building	140,000	0	0	0
Administration Office - repair cracks in walls	30,000	0	0	0
Administration Office - shade structure at rear over table	10,000	0	0	0
New PC's/Laptops	15,000		0	20,000
Records Management	30,000	0	0	0
CEO Vehicle	70,000	0	70,000	0
EMCCS Vehicle	55,000	0	55,000	0
EMTRS Vehicle	55,000	0	55,000	0
EMDRS Vehicle	55,000	0	55,000	0
Future years estimated (other)		50,000	300,000	50,000
TOTAL ESTIMATED:	34,809,809	5,400,000	12,000,000	3,400,000



## **Service Delivery**

The Shire of Narrogin delivers services to its community in line with its mission, values and four key strategic objectives as set out within the Strategic Community Plan.

Each of the four objectives has several outcomes the Shire seeks to achieve over the 10+ years of the Strategic Community Plan. For each objective, one or more desired outcomes has been defined along with strategies to achieve the outcomes.

The outcomes were developed after considering the community engagement process and other external factors such as the available plans published by other government agencies.

The tables on the following pages detail future actions to be undertaken for each strategy. Prioritisation of the actions is reflected by the square indicating when the action is planned to be undertaken. This prioritisation guides the delivery of services and implementation of the actions.

The table below summarises the desired outcomes under each of the four key themes and strategic objectives.

	Objectives		Outcomes
ECONOMIC	Support growth and progress, locally and regionally	Outcome 1.1 Outcome 1.2 Outcome 1.3 Outcome 1.4	Growth in revenue opportunities Increased tourism An effective well maintained transport network Agriculture opportunities maintained and developed
SOCIAL	To provide community facilities and promote social interaction	Outcome 2.1 Outcome 2.2 Outcome 2.3 Outcome 2.4 Outcome 2.5	Provision of youth services Build a healthier and safer community Existing strong community spirit and pride is fostered, promoted and encouraged Cultural and heritage diversity is recognised A broad range of quality education services and facilities servicing the region
ENVIRONMENT	Conserve, protect and enhance our natural and built environment	Outcome 3.1 Outcome 3.2 Outcome 3.3 Outcome 3.4	A preserved natural environment Effective waste services Efficient use of resources A well maintained built environment
CIVIC LEADERSHIP	Continually enhance the Shire's organisational capacity to service the needs of a growing community	Outcome 4.1 Outcome 4.2	An efficient and effective organisation An employer of choice



## **Economic Objective**

### Support growth and progress, locally and regionally

The following tables reflect the future actions to be undertaken for each strategy. The prioritisation of the actions is reflected by a square indicating when the action is planned to be undertaken.

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Attract new industry, business, investment	1.1.1.1	Develop and implement an economic development strategy	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
and encourage diversity whilst	1.1.1.2	Development of new industrial area		•	•	•	<b>→</b>
encouraging growth of local business	1.1.1.3	Develop stakeholder relationships for exporting		-	_		
	1.1.1.4	Lobby for improved communication services within the district	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.1.1.5	Engage with potential investors	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.1.1.6	Advocate for Narrogin to be a centre for provision of Government services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Promote Narrogin and the Region	1.1.2.1	Review and update the Business Prospectus	•			•	<b>→</b>
	1.1.2.2	Maintain relationships with key stakeholders	•	-	-	-	<b>→</b>
	1.1.2.3	Investigate development of regional industrial hub		•			
	1.1.2.4	Engage with regional organisations for the promotion of the Region	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.1.2.5	Finalise & activate the Local Planning Scheme & Local Planning Strategy - Endorsed by WA Planning Commission 07/20		Completed	I		
Promote Narrogin's health and aged services including	1.1.3.1	Advocate for increased provision of health and aged services in the Shire of Narrogin	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
aged housing	1.1.3.2	Advocate for the provision of specialist surgical services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.1.3.3	Identify and promote the development of further aged housing			•		
	1.1.3.4	Continue to support the provision of Home & Community Care and aged services including relocation of Jessie House activities to more appropriate location to enable expansion and improvements		•	•	•	<b>→</b>

# **Economic Objective (continued)**

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
tourism and maintain local attractions	1.2.1.1	Develop and activate a Tourism Strategy - Adopted 25/5/20			Completed	d	
	1.2.1.2	Support tourism activities within the district in accordance with Strategy	•	•	-	•	<b>→</b>
	1.2.1.3	Support sport, art and cultural events, recognising the economic benefit they provide	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.2.1.4	Review and update the Caravan Park Master Plan			Completed		
	1.2.1.5	Maintain Shire controlled local tourist attractions	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.2.1.6	Support and encourage local micro tourism	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Maintain and improve road network in line with resource capacity	1.3.1.1	Maintain and improve road network in line with Asset Management Plans	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Review and implement the Airport Master Plan	1.3.2.1	Implement Airport Master Plan	-	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.3.2.2	Review Airport Master Plan				•	

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Support development of agricultural services	1.4.1.1	Continue to engage with stakeholders within agricultural industry to ensure appropriate service provision	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.4.1.2	Ensure appropriate consideration of the agricultural industry requirements in the preparation of the Local Planning Scheme and Local Planning Strategy	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	1.4.1.3	Ensure agriculture is an integral element of the proposed Economic Development Strategy			•		
	1.4.1.4	Advocate for the interests of agriculture as a critical component of our economy	•	•	•	-	<b>→</b>

## **Social Objective**

### To provide community facilities and promote social interaction

The following tables reflect the future actions to be undertaken for each strategy. The prioritisation of the actions is reflected by a square indicating when the action is planned to be undertaken.

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Develop and implement a youth strategy	2.1.1.1	Finalise youth strategy and engage with stakeholders. Youth Engagement, Strategy and Development Plan 2019/20 Adopted 27/10/20			Complet	ted	
	2.1.1.2	Provide youth services and facilities in accordance with the youth strategy	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	2.1.1.3	Work with local youth service providers	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Support the provision of community security	2.2.1.1	Develop a community safety and security strategy				•	
services and facilities	2.2.1.2	Maintain and further develop the CCTV network	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	2.2.1.3	Advocate for increased police and justice services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Advocate for mental health and social	2.2.2.1	Lobby for increased mental health support services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
support services	2.2.2.2	Lobby for increased social support services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Continue and improve provision of in-home care services	2.2.3.1	Continue to support the provision of Home and Community Care and aged services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
-	2.2.3.2	Lobby for increased funding for Home and Community Care and in-home care services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

# **Social Objective (continued)**

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Develop and activate Sport and Recreation Master Plan	2.3.1.1	Develop Narrogin Regional Leisure Centre and Clayton Oval Concept Plan for Precinct	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	2.3.1.2	Activate Sport and Recreation Master Plan / Concept Plans	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Engage and support community groups	2.3.2.1	Continue to provide the community chest	•	•		•	<b>→</b>
and volunteers	2.3.2.2	Advocate on behalf of volunteer and community groups	•	•		•	<b>→</b>
	2.3.2.3	Continue to support emergency services including improved facilities	•	•		•	<b>→</b>
Facilitate and support community events	2.3.3.1	Continue to support existing community events	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	2.3.3.2	Investigate opportunities and support for new community events	•	•		•	<b>→</b>
Provide improved community facilities (e.g.	2.3.4.1	Improve and continue to provide community facilities in line with Asset Management Plans	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
library/recreation)	2.3.4.2	Consider expanding services and facilities at the Library			•		
Encourage and support continued development of arts and culture	2.3.5.1	Continue to support arts and cultural activities within the district	•	•	-	•	<del>)</del>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Maintain and enhance heritage assets	2.4.1.1	Review Municipal Heritage List New List adopted 27/11/19			Completed		
	2.4.1.2	Maintain heritage assets in line with AMP's	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	2.4.1.3	Seek and support initiatives for enhancement of heritage assets in the district	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Support our Narrogin cultural and	2.4.2.1	Continue to engage with cultural and Indigenous community	•	•	•		<b>→</b>
Indigenous community	2.4.2.2	Adopt a Community Engagement Strategy. Policy adopted 8/10/19			Completed		
	2.4.2.3	Lobby for long term funding in support of cultural and indigenous initiatives	•	•	-	•	<b>→</b>

# **Social Objective (continued)**

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Advocate for increased and improved education facilities for the region	2.5.1.1	Continue lobbying for increased and improved education facilities	•	•	•	•	<del>)</del>
Advocate for and support increased and improved education services	2.5.2.1	Continue lobbying for increased and improved education services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

## **Environment Objective**

### Conserve, protect and enhance our natural and built environment

The following tables reflect the future actions to be undertaken for each strategy. The prioritisation of the actions is reflected by a square indicating when the action is planned to be undertaken.

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Conserve, enhance, promote and rehabilitate the natural environment	3.1.1.1	Develop and implement a Local Biodiversity Strategy				•	<b>→</b>
	3.1.1.2	Develop and implement Natural Resource Plans				•	<b>→</b>
	3.1.1.3	Continue to implement and support Foxes Lair Management Plan	-	-	•	•	<b>→</b>
	3.1.1.4	Continue to implement and support Railway Dam Management Plan	-	-	-	•	<b>→</b>
	3.1.1.5	Continue Landcare Tree Planting Grants (as Reserve Funds allow)	-	-	-	•	<b>→</b>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Support the provision of waste services	3.2.1.1	Continue to investigate regional waste facility			Discontinued		
	3.2.1.2	Continue to implement the waste management plan	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	3.2.1.3	Undertake improved education and support for community and individual recycling initiatives	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Increase resource usage efficiency	3.3.1.1	Seek funding to improve and expand treated waste water irrigation system - Completed 2021			Complet	ed	
	3.3.1.2	Continue to work with research institutes and / or other organisations to promote and support the use of alternative energy	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	3.3.1.3	Seek funding to harvest and reutilise storm water and implement – Completed 2022			Completed		

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Improve and maintain built environment	3.4.1.1	Maintain and implement Asset Management Plans	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	3.4.1.2	Investigate and implement Shire of Narrogin (incorporating Narrogin and Highbury) Townscape Plan	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
	3.4.1.3	Review the Shire of Narrogin Townscape Plan		•			
	3.4.1.4	Refurbish Railway Station and activate heritage precinct		Completed			

## **Civic Leadership Objective**

Continually enhance the Shire's organisational capacity to service the needs of a growing community

The following tables reflect the future actions to be undertaken for each strategy. The prioritisation of the actions is reflected by a square indicating when the action is planned to be undertaken.

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Continually improve	4.1.1.1	Provide quality customer service	•		•		<b>→</b>
operational efficiencies and provide effective	4.1.1.2	Review, update and maintain strategic and operational plans	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
services	4.1.1.3	Continue to provide quality regulatory services (planning/building /health/ranger services)	•	-	•	•	<b>→</b>
	4.1.1.4	Continue to utilise technological developments to enhance efficiencies	•	•	•	-	<b>→</b>
	4.1.1.5	Continue to develop shared service provision	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	4.1.1.6	Support and provide training and development opportunities for Elected Members and staff	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
Continue to enhance communication and transparency	4.1.2.1	Promote participation of community stakeholders	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	4.1.2.2	Utilise diverse communication channels	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
-	4.1.2.3	Build increased awareness of Shire operations and services	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	4.1.2.4	Encourage community interest in Local Government Elected Member leadership	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>

Strategy	Action No.	Actions	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029 Onwards
Provide a positive, desirable workplace	4.2.1.1	Provide an attractive and safe work environment	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>
	4.2.1.2	Maintain a positive work culture and teamwork	•	•	•	•	<b>→</b>



## **Measuring Success**

The intended outcome of this Plan is to align the community's visions and aspirations for the future of the Shire of Narrogin to the Shire's objectives. Success will be measured by both quantifiable and non-quantifiable outcomes.

Key performance measures provide an indication of whether the Shire is meeting the objectives and will be monitored and reported. The measures for each objective are provided in the table below.

	Objectives	Key Performance Measures	
ECONOMIC	Support growth and progress, locally and regionally	<ul> <li>Population statistics</li> <li>No. of development approvals</li> <li>Assessed vacancy rates (business and residential)</li> <li>No. of building approvals</li> </ul>	
SOCIAL	To provide community facilities and promote social interaction	<ul> <li>Social media activity</li> <li>Community participation levels in recreation activities and events</li> <li>Recreation Centre usage rates</li> <li>Reduction in anti-social behaviour</li> </ul>	
ENVIRONMENT	Conserve, protect and enhance our natural and built environment	<ul> <li>Statutory asset management ratios</li> <li>Compliance with statutory reviews required by the Local Planning Framework</li> <li>Compliance with statutory requirements for the review of the Municipal Heritage Inventory</li> </ul>	
CIVIC LEADERSHIP	Continually enhance the Shire's organisational capacity to service the needs of a growing community	<ul> <li>Statutory financial ratios</li> <li>Employee retention rates</li> <li>Volunteer levels</li> </ul>	

### **Services and Facilities**

Services and facilities provided by the Shire are linked with the relevant strategy of the Strategic Community Plan in the following table. The table reflects the strong connection between the services and facilities provided by the Shire and the desired outcomes and community vision.

Services/Facilities	Associated Strategic Reference	Services/Facilities	Associated Strategic Reference
Community Facilities		Shire Services	
Caravan park	1.2.1   3.4.1	Building control	4.1.1
Children's playgrounds	2.3.4   3.4.1	Community consultation & engagement	2.4.2   4.1.2
Gnarojin park	1.2.1   2.3.4   3.4.1	Council's customer service & payments	4.1.1
Library	2.3.4   3.4.1	Economic development	1.1.1   1.1.2   1.1.3   1.2.1   1.4.1     3.1.1
Narrogin Regional Leisure Centre	1.1.2   1.2.1   2.3.1   3.4.1	Environmental initiatives	3.1.1   3.2.1   3.3.1
Outdoor gym	2.3.1   2.3.4	Festival & event management	2.3.3
Parks, gardens & ovals	2.3.4   3.4.1	Financial management	4.1.1
Public toilets	2.3.4   3.4.1	Fire control & emergency management	2.3.2   3.1.1
Reserves & public open spaces	1.2.1   3.1.1	Governance & advocacy	1.1.1   1.1.3   2.2.1   2.2.2   2.2.3   2.3.2   2.4.1   2.4.2   3.1.1   4.1.1   4.1.2   4.2.1
Skate park	2.1.1   2.3.1   2.3.4	Health administration, inspection & education	4.1.1
Sport & recreation facilities	2.3.1   2.3.4	Household waste and recycling	3.2.1
Town hall complex	2.3.4   3.4.1	Litter Control	1.2.1   3.2.1
		Long term planning	4.1.1
Community Support & Services		Maintenance - other infrastructure	3.4.1
Aged care & home-care	1.1.3   2.2.3	Maintenance - roads	1.3.1   3.4.1
Arts & culture	1.1.2   1.2.1   2.3.2   2.3.3   2.3.5   2.4.2	Natural resource management	3.1.1
Community Assisted Transport Service	1.1.3	Parking control	1.1.2
Crime prevention	2.2.1	Pest control	3.1.1   4.1.1
Disability services	1.1.3   2.2.2	Ranger and animal services	4.1.1
Sport & recreation club development	2.3.1   2.3.2   2.3.3   2.3.5	Refuse site	3.2.1
		Regional collaboration	1.1.1   1.1.2   1.4.1
Infrastructure		Streetscape and gardens	1.2.1   2.3.4   3.4.1
Airport	1.3.2	Tourism	1.2.1
CBD infrastructure (footpaths, seating, etc.)	1.2.1   3.4.1	Town planning	1.4.1   3.4.1
CBD street lighting	3.4.1	Transport, licensing & coach ticketing	4.1.1
Cemetery	3.4.1		
Drainage & storm water	1.3.1		
Roads, verges & footpaths	1.3.1   3.4.1		

For further details on the Corporate Business Plan please contact Shire of Narrogin 89 Earl Street

PO Box 1145

Narrogin WA 6312 T: 08 9890 0900

F: 08 9881 3092

E: enquiries@narrogin.wa.gov.au W: www.narrogin.wa.gov.au

